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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF COLORADO

DOCKET NO. 09G-808CP

STIPULATION AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND MOTION FOR APPROVAL

COLORADO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION,

Complainant,

v.

Colorado Cab Company LLC dba Denver Yellow Cab

Respondent.

Staff of the Public Utilities Commission (Staff) and Respondent, Colorado Cab Company

LLC, doing business as Denver Yellow Cab ("Yellow Cab," "Respondent," and/or "Company),

(collectively Parties), enter into this Stipulation and Settlement Agreement (Agreement) in the

above-referenced docket as a complete and final resolution of all issues. Staff and Yellow Cab

request the Commission to enter an order approving this Agreement.

Background

1. On November 3, 2009, the Commission issued to Respondent Civil Penalty

Assessment Notice (CPAN) No. 91898 seeking civil penalties (which includes as part of the total

amount a 10% surcharge pursuant to § 24-34-108 CRS) of $165,000.00 (or $82,550.00 if paid

within 10 days). CPAN No. 91898 was issued in connection with a safety and compliance

review conducted by Staff Investigators John Opeka and Monita Pacheco, who cited Respondent

with 60 violations of the Commission's Rules Regulating Safety for Motor Vehicle Carriers and

Establishing Civil Penalties, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-6-6103 concerning

hours of service of drivers. Specifically, CPAN No. 91898 alleged 60 violations of 4 CCR 723
(00384312.1)
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hours of service of drivers. Specifically, CPANNo. 91898 alleged 60 violations of4 CCR 723-

6-6lO3(d)(IV)(B)(ii) by three drivers l at Denver International Airport for driving on specified

days in February 2009 after being on duty more than 80 hours in 8 consecutive days. A copy of

CPANNo. 91898 is attached as Exhibit A. Commission Rule 4 CCR 723-6-6105(b) allows for a

penalty ofup to $2500.00 per violation.

2. On December 8, 2009, Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) Harris Adams issued

Decision NO. R09-1316-I, an Interim Order setting this matter for hearing on February 16 and

17, 20lO, in Denver, Colorado. After the parties advised that they had reached a settlement in

principle, Decision No. RIO-0128-1 was issued on February 10, 2010, vacating the hearing.

3. Following extensive settlement negotiations in a meeting between Staff and

Respondent, with their respective counsel present, and later continued rounds of lengthy

discussions, the Parties reached agreement to resolve all disputed issues. The Agreement herein

has been reached in the spirit of compromise and in light of the uncertainties of trial. The

Agreement has also been reached to avoid the costly expense of litigation. The Parties note that

the Agreement promotes administrative efficiency by avoiding the time and expense that would

be necessarily devoted to hearing this matter in Denver, Colorado. Lastly, the Parties

acknowledge that this settlement will not have precedential effect on any other Commission

matters. See Colorado Ute Elec. Ass'n, Inc. v. PUC, 602 P.2d 861, 865 (Colo. 1979); B & M

Serv., Inc. v. PUC, 429 P.2d 293, 296 (Colo. 1967).

4. The Parties also have taken into account the factors listed in 4 CCR 723-1-

1302(b) in reaching this Agreement. Staff has been informed by Yellow that it has now received

1 All of Yellow Cab's drivers have been and continue to be independent contractors. All references in this
Stipulation and Settlement Agreement to "drivers" are intended to mean Respondent's independent contractor
drivers.
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is ongoing, Staff recognizes that DIA records, when combined with an enhanced review and

cross checking process by the Company with the Company's internal records in the internal audit

process described in Part II of Exhibit B, provides and will continue to provide information to

the Company and to Staff that will result in better detection and correction of instances when

drivers fail to follow the hours of service requirements of the Commission Rules. Staff also

agrees that the suspension of $115,000 of the penalty initially assessed is appropriate because

requiring payment of the entire amount would result a significant loss of net income to YeHow

Cab and such a loss could impair Yellow Cab's ability to continue to serve the public by using

some or all of those funds to perform the enhanced review and cross-checking processes

including those set forth in this Agreement.

3
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Settlement Agreement

5. Staff and Respondent hereby stipulate and agree as follows:

a. Respondent admits liability for all 60 violations in CPAN No. 91898.

b. In consideration of Respondent's admission ofliability in subparagraph 5(a) above,
and for the reasons expressed in paragraphs 3 and 4 above, and in consideration of
the terms set forth below, Staff agrees to suspend $115,000 of the proposed civil
penalty of$165,000.00, subject to the following conditions.

c. Respondent agrees to pay $50,000.00 (which includes the 10% surcharge pursuant
to § 24-34-108 CRS) in one payment to the Commission no later than ten (10)
days after the effective date of a decision of the Commission approving this
Agreement. Such payment shall be in certified funds, or if by check, the check
cannot be returned for non-sufficient funds. If Respondent fails to pay $50,000 to
the Commission by the due date provided in the preceding sentence pursuant to
those terms, then Respondent shall be immediately liable for the entire penalty
amount of$165,000.00, less any amount paid, and the additional terms set forth in
subparagraphs 5(d) through 5(h) below shall not take effect. Yellow Cab agrees
to provide Staff with a detailed plan of what it has done in the past and specific
plans for the future to correct the type of hours of service violations cited in the
CPAN. The plan shall include approximate dates when the components of the
plan have been or will be implemented by Yellow Cab. That plan is provided as
ExhibitB.

d. Yellow Cab must file a report with the Staff of the Commission every ninety
calendar days for a period of 540 calendar days (approximately 18 months) The
first ninety day period shall begin on the day after the Commission's final
decision and shall run for a 90 day calendar day period. Staff stipulates that it
will review and comment on each report. The information to be contained in each
report and obligations of the Parties are more fully set forth in Exhibit C which is
attached and incorporated. Failure to file any and all reports as set forth in Exhibit
C by Yellow Cab will be considered waiver of the suspension of the $115,000 and
Respondent shall be immediately liable for the entire penalty amount of$115,000.

e. Yellow Cab stipulates that its execution of this Agreement is to be considered a
full and complete waiver of its rights to exceptions and to rehearing, reargument
and reconsideration, and for judicial review pursuant to 4 CCR 723-1-1505,
1506, and 1507 and C.R.S. § 40-6-113, 40-6-114, and 40-6-115, except as set
forth in Paragraph 5(h) and Paragraph 7 below.
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f. Staff agrees that it will, for a period of540 days (approximately 18 months) from the
effective date of a Commission decision approving the Agreement in this docket:

1. Conduct periodic random hours of service audits and inspections in
addition to the audits and inspections of the Company's books and
records pursuant to the policies and procedures of the
Transportation Unit of the Public Utilities Commission to
determine possible hours of service violations by the Respondent
and/or its drivers.

11. Explain, work with and discuss with the Company, and not issue a
civil penalty assessment notice to the Company for, any hours of
service violations found by Staff during its random audits and
inspections during the first 180 days of the 540 day period.

111. Determine at its sole discretion whether to issue civil penalty
assessment notices concerning any alleged hours of service
violations and any other types of violations found during the 181st
through the 540th day of such period; provided, however, that Staff
agrees not to issue any civil penalty assessment notices for alleged
violations that Respondent documents in its records as part of the
reporting process set forth below, that it addressed before Staff
found such alleged violation.

g. Staff agrees that the intent and purpose of the reporting process by the Company
and the review process by the Staff provided in subparagraphs 5(d) and (f) for the
first 180 days of the 540-day period is to provide the Respondent with a grace
period in which to monitor, implement and correct possible hours of service
violations found on its own or by the Staff, without additional civil penalty
assessment notices being issued by the Staff for alleged hours of service
violations.

h. If, during the 181st through the 540th days of such period, (I) Staff finds a total of
seventy-five (75) or more alleged violations of 4 CCR 723-6-6103(d)(IV)(B)(ii)
and 4 CCR 723-6-6102(ai as it pertains to 49 CFR 395.5(a)(I), 49 CFR
395.5(a)(2), 49 CFR 395.8(a) that Respondent fails to demonstrate it addressed
prior to Staff finding them, and (2) such violations result in one or more civil
penalty assessments for seventy-five (75) violations of such hours of service
regulations that Respondent did not address being issued to Respondent,3 and (3)
at least seventy-five (75) ofthose alleged violations are found to be valid by either

2 Amendments to the Commission's hours of service rules are pending in Docket No. IOR-036TR. Upon a fmal
decision being issued in that docket, the corresponding amended hours of service rules shall apply to this
Agreement.
3 Respondent reserves all of its rights to contest and appeal all alleged violations cited in any such civil penalty
assessment notices.
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a final decision of the Commission or admission by Respondent, in addition to
any civil penalties owed for such violations, Respondent shall be liable to pay the
$115,000.00 balance of the civil penalty for CPAN No. 91898 suspended by this
Agreement within 30 days after the effective date of such decision. If all three
conditions in the foregoing sentence are not satisfied by the 540th day for such
period, then the suspension of the $115,000 balance of the civil penalty for CPAN
No. 91898 shall be permanently waived on the 540th day after the effective date of
a Commission decision approving this Agreement.

6. Staff is satisfied that the Respondent's payment of a reduced civil penalty

of $50,000.00, along with compliance with the terms set forth above, is sufficient to

motivate the Respondent to remain compliant with the Public Utilities Laws and

Commission Rules on a going-forward basis. The Parties recognize and agree that this

settlement and stipulation is a unique method ofbinding both Parties to resolve a problem

that they recognize affects the safety of the public using taxi servIces. The Parties

recognize that the various steps and timeframes incorporated into this Agreement have

not been previously attempted but have been carefully negotiated by the Parties as a

means of achieving compliance in the future.

7. In the event that this Agreement is modified, or disapproved in whole or part,

by the Commission in a manner that is unacceptable to either Party, each Party shall have

the option to withdraw from this Agreement by providing notice within seven (7) days of

entry of such Order to the other Party and to the Commission. In that event, the Parties

agree that this matter shall be set for hearing.
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8. WHEREFORE, Staff of the Public Utilities Commission and Colorado Cab

Company, LLC respectfully request the Commission to enter an Order approving, without

modification, this Stipulation and Settlement Agreement.

EXECUTED this 16\7A day ofJuly, 2010.

Senior Criminal Investigator
Colorado Public Utilities Commission

STAFF OF THE COLORADO
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

By: ~~
Robert Laws
1560 Broadway, Suite 250
Denver, Colorado 80203

approved as to form:

. JOHN W. SUTHERS, ATrORNEY GENERAL

By: =---=-=----:::::':"-,-,---,---Jean S. Watson-Weidner *21036
Assistant Attorney General
Business and Licensing Section
1525 Sherman Street, 5th Floor
Denver, Colorado 80203
Telephone: (303) 866-5158
Facsimile: (303) 866-5395
isww@state.co.u~

COUNSEL FOR STAFF OF THE

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

*Counsel of Record

approved as to/arm:
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8. WHEREFORE, Staff of the Public Utilities Commission and Colorado Cab

Company, LLC respectfully request the Commission to enter an Order approving, without

modification, this Stipulation and Settlement Agreement.
pc

EXECUTED this Iff, day ofJuly, 2010.

Senior Criminal Investigator
Colorado Public Utilities Commission

STAFF OF THE COLORADO
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

By:::-::---::---------
Robert Laws
1560 Broadway, Suite 250
Denver, Colorado 80203

approved as to form:

JOHN W. SUTHERS, ATTORNEY GENERAL

<1 /,"/;, .
B~ . It: / f.!~t.-d./U/»
t/).e~n S. Watson-Wei ner *21036

Assi.tant Attorney General
Business and Licensing Section
1525 Sherman Street, 5th Floor
Denver, Colorado 80203
Telephone: (303) 866-5158
Facsimile: (303) 866-5395
jsww(a)state.co.us

COUNSEL FOR STAFF OF THE
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

*CounselofRecord

approved as toform:
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COLORADO CAB COMPANY, DBA
DENVER YELLOW CAB

Brad Whittle

Title: President

DUFFORD & BROWN, P.C.

Dufford & Brown, P.C.
1700 Broadway, Suite 2100
Denver, CO 80290-2101
Phone: 303-837-6333
Fax: 303-832-3804
Email: rfanyo@duffordbrown.com

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT,
COLORADO CAB COMPANY LLC, DBA
DENVER YELLOW CAB
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